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Dougl as Wayne Hatchett appeals the sentence inposed after
he pleaded guilty to aiding and abetting bank fraud in violation
of 18 U.S.C. 88 2, 1344. Hatchett’s offense conduct was part of
a larger schene to defraud banks and retailers in Texas that
i nvol ved fraudul ent check-witing and the assunption of false
identities.

The presentence report set Hatchett’s guideline range at 51

to 63 nonths of inprisonnment, but the district court upwardly

" Pursuant to 5THOR R 47.5, the court has determ ned that
this opi nion should not be published and is not precedent except
under the limted circunstances set forth in 5THCQR R 47.5. 4.
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departed pursuant to 8§ 5K2.0 and § 2Bl1.1 of the Cuidelines and
sentenced Hatchett to 120 nonths of inprisonnent.
When a def endant appeals a sentence inposed pursuant to the

advi sory gui delines schene required by United States v. Booker,

543 U. S. 220 (2005), this court determ nes whether the sentence

was reasonable. United States v. Smth, 440 F.3d 704, 706 (5th

Cir. 2006). The sentencing court’s factual findings are accepted
unl ess clearly erroneous, and the application of the Cuidelines
is reviewed de novo. |d.

Because the district court upwardly departed pursuant to
8§ 5K2.0 of the Guidelines, Hatchett’'s sentence is a “guideline
sentence,” and the decision to depart is reviewed for abuse of

di scretion. See id. at 707; see also United States v. Sinkanin,

420 F. 3d 397, 415-16 (5th Gr. 2005), cert. denied, 126 S. C

1911 (2006). “A sentencing court does not abuse its discretion
in deciding to upwardly depart when its reasons for doing so

(1) advance the objectives set forth in 18 U S. C. 8§ 3553(a)(2);
(2) are authorized by 18 U S.C. § 3553(b); and (3) are justified

by the facts of the case.” United States v. Sal dana, 427 F.3d

298, 310 (5th Cr. 2005) (footnotes omtted), cert. denied,

126 S. C. 1097 (2006).

Hatchett’s first argunent is predicated on a m sreadi ng of
Booker. Hatchett clainms that the district court violated the
rule that “[a]lny fact (other than a prior conviction) which is

necessary to support a sentence exceedi ng the maxi nrum aut hori zed
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by the facts established by a plea of guilty or a jury verdict
must be admtted by the defendant or proved to a jury beyond a
reasonabl e doubt.” Booker, 543 U S. at 244. The district
judge’s fact-finding was proper because “wth the mandatory use
of the Quidelines excised, the Sixth Anmendnent will not inpede a
sentencing judge fromfinding all facts relevant to sentencing.”

United States v. Mares, 402 F.3d 511, 519 (5th Cr.) (citing

Booker, 543 U. S. at 233, 259), cert. denied, 126 S. C. 43

(2005) .

Hat chett al so argues that the upward departure was
unr easonabl e because the district court’s statenents at the
sentencing hearing and in its witten statenent of reasons
regarding participants in the fraud schene dressing up |ike
mlitary personnel in order to facilitate their crinmes are not
supported by the record. Wile the record does not show that the
schene involved “dressing up” like mlitary personnel, Hatchett
never denied that such activity occurred, and he did not object
to the court’s statenents below. In addition, the record shows
that mlitary identification devices were created and used as
part of the fraud schene. The court’s finding of fact was not
clearly erroneous. See Smth, 440 F.3d at 706. Nor were its
reasons for upwardly departing unreasonable, as they are

“Justified by the facts of the case.” See Sal dana, 427 F.3d at

310.
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Finally, Hatchett argues that the district court’s reasons
for upwardly departing were “patently unreasonabl e’ because the
district court held himresponsible “for blow ng up the Ckl ahoma
City Federal Building before the superseding indictnent’s
timefranme” and “for blowing up the Sears Tower when it has not
yet been blown up.” The district court never held Hatchett
responsi bl e for these expl osive scenarios but nentioned themto
illustrate the danger presented by the nethods of those involved
in Hatchett’s fraud schene. |In addition, the court pointed to
the commentary to 8§ 2B1.1, which specifically contenplates that
an upward departure may be warranted where, as here, “[t]he
of fense caused substantial harmto the victinis reputation or
credit record, or the victimsuffered a substantial inconvenience
related to repairing the victims reputation or a danaged credit
record” or where “[a]n individual whose neans of identification
t he defendant used to obtain unlawful neans of identification
is erroneously arrested.” 8 2B1.1 cnt. n.19(A)(vi)(l) and (I1).
One of Hatchett’'s victins suffered both these indignities.
Accordingly, the court’s decision to depart was not unreasonabl e.
See Snith, 440 F.3d at 706-07.

AFFI RVED.



